
 

Agenda - External Affairs and Additional Legislation 

Committee 
Meeting Venue: 

Committee Room 4 - Tŷ Hywel 

Meeting date: 25 June 2018 

Meeting time: 13.45

For further information contact: 

Rhys Morgan 

Committee Clerk 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddEAAL@assembly.wales
------ 

Private pre-meeting  

(13.45-14.00) 

1 Motion under Standing Order 17.22 to elect a Temporary Chair 

(14.00-14.05)   

2 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of 

interest 

(14.05)   

3 Hub Cymru Africa - evidence session 

(14.05-15.05) (Pages 1 - 43)  

Cat Jones, Hub Cymru Africa 

Aileen Burmeister, Fair Trade Wales 

Kathrin Thomas, Wales for Africa Health Links Network 

Fadhili Maghiya, Sub Sahara Advisory Panel 

4 Papers to note 

(15.05-15.10)   

4.1 Paper to note 1 - Correspondence from Greg Hands MP, Minister of State for 

Trade Policy, regarding the implications of future trade policy - 11 June 2018 

 (Pages 44 - 45)  

4.2 Paper to note 2 - Correspondence from the Llywydd to the First Minister 

regarding the EU (Withdrawal) Bill and environmental law - 14 June 2018 

 (Pages 46 - 47)  

------------------------ Public Document Pack ------------------------



4.3 Paper to note 3 - Correspondence from Mick Antoniw, Chair of the 

Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee, to the Cabinet Secretary for 

Finance regarding the intergovernmental agreement on the EU (Withdrawal) 

Bill - 19 June 2018 

 (Pages 48 - 49)  

4.4 Paper to note 4 - Correspondence from the Cabinet Secretary for Finance to 

Mick Antoniw, Chair of the Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee, 

regarding the intergovernmental agreement on the EU (Withdrawal) Bill - 19 

June 2018 

 (Page 50)  

4.5 Paper to note 5 - Correspondence from the Llywydd to Karl Heinz Lambertz, 

President European Committee of the Regions regarding the Committee of 

the Regions - 19 June 2018 

 (Pages 51 - 52)  

4.6 Paper to note 6 - Correspondence from the Cabinet Secretary for Finance 

regarding the inter-governmental agreement between the Welsh and UK 

governments - 19 June 2018 

 (Pages 53 - 55)  

4.7 Paper to note 7 - Correspondence from the Cabinet Secretary for Finance 

regarding the Brexit transition inquiry - 19 June 2018 

 (Pages 56 - 59)  

4.8 Paper to note 8 - Correspondence from Robin Walker MP, Parliamentary 

Under-Secretary for Exiting the EU, regarding the Brexit transition inquiry - 

20 June 2018 

 (Pages 60 - 62)  

4.9 Paper to note 9 - Correspondence from the Cabinet Secretary for Economy to 

Angus MacNeil MP, Chair of the House of Commons Select Committee on 

International Trade, regarding UK trade strategy post Brexit - 21 June 2018 

 (Pages 63 - 66)  

5 Motion under Standing Order 17.42(vi) to resolve to exclude the 

public from the remainder of the meeting 

(15.10)   



6 Hub Cymru Africa - consideration of evidence 

(15.10-15.20)   

7 Briefing on the European Union (Withdrawal) Bill 

(15.20-15.30) (Pages 67 - 78)  



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1

Agenda Item 3By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 12

By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 24

By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



@
Department for
lnternational Tiade

David Rees AM
Chair of the External Affairs and Additional
Legislation Committee
National Assembly for Wales
Cardiff, CF99 1NA

E-mail: Rhvs. assemblv.wales

Rt Hon Greg Hands MP

Department for lnternational Trade
King Charles Street
Whitehall
London
SWlA 2AH

T +44 (0) 20 7215 5000

E enouiries@trade.osi.qov.uk

W www.gov.uk

Our ref : MCDC2O1 8/02651

tÈ June 2o1B

Thank you for your letter dated 16 May regarding the implications of future trade policy for
Wales. lwould be delighted to attend the meeting of the ExternalAffairs and Additional
Leg islation Committee.

Firstly, let me assure you that we are committed to ensuring that the devolved administrations
and legislatures have the opportunity to engage with and contribute to our trade policy.

We have established 14 Trade Working Groups across 21 countries, to explore the best ways
of progressing our trade and investment relationships across the world. These working groups
include engagement with the United States, the Andean Community (covers Peru, Colombia
and Ecuador), Australia, Canada, China, the Gulf Cooperation Council (GCC - comprising
Bahrain, Kuwait, Oman, Qatar, SaudiArabia and the UAE), lsrael, lndia, Japan, Mexico, New
Zealand, Noruray, Turkey and South Korea. ln addition to seeking continuity for our existing
EU trade agreements (where these are in place), these working groups also provide a forum to
prepare for the negotiation of wholly new Free Trade Agreements (FTAs) with key partners as
we leave the EU.

lnternational relations is of course a reserved matter. That is why these working groups are
delivered by the UK Government on behalf of the whole of the UK. Having said that, we are
keen that the Devolved Administrations have a role supporting preparations for the negotiation
of future trade agreements. lt is precisely for this reason that my Department has established a
programme of work with the Devolved Administrations to facilitate how your Government and
the other Devolved Administrations can inform the development of an independent UK trade
policy over the course of 2018, particularly where trade interacts with areas of devolved
competence.

Pack Page 44

Agenda Item 4.1



I welcome the opportunity to attend the External Affairs and Additional Legislation Committee
to discuss this further. Given the Committee's role in examining the Trade Bill, I would also
welcome the opportunity to discuss this Bill with the Committee in more detail. My officials will
be in contact with the Committee clerks to make arrangements.

V
(",^ry

I

RT HON GREG HANDS MP

Minister of State for Trade Policy

Department for lnternational Trade

Pack Page 45



 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg / We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English 

 

 

 
 
Rt Hon Carwyn Jones AM 
First Minister of Wales 
Welsh Government 
Cardiff Bay 
CF99 1NA 
 
 
Your ref:  
Our ref: EJ/CW 

 
 
14 June 2018 
 
 
Dear First Minister, 

It has come to my attention that following Commons Consideration of Lords 
Amendments to the European Union (Withdrawal) Bill, the UK Government has 
backed an amendment in lieu (number 3A) relating to publishing a draft Bill 
preserving EU environmental law. 

The amendment would appear to apply to the whole of the UK and to fall within 
the legislative competence of the Assembly. Therefore it would appear to be 
subject to the Sewel Convention and to the legislative consent procedure set out 
in Standing Order 29. If so, we would face the unprecedented situation of 
considering legislative consent as a Bill moves rapidly between the Houses of 
Parliament during its final legislative stage.  

If Assembly consent is required before the House of Lords next sit on Monday 
afternoon, this would require the Assembly to be summoned at your request 
under Standing Order 12.3 and the suspension of the Standing Orders relating to 
notice of motions. 

At its meeting on Tuesday, Business Committee discussed the potential for 
Legislative Consent Memoranda during ping pong, and agreed that the Assembly 

would do everything necessary to facilitate scrutiny of these if they materialise. 

 

Pack Page 46

Agenda Item 4.2



 

 

Given the potentially very tight timescales and the possibility that the Assembly 
would need to meet outside its usual Plenary times, I would be grateful if you 
could confirm as soon as possible whether or not you are intending to lay an LCM 

in respect of the amendment referred to above, so that I can keep Assembly 
Members informed. 

I am copying this letter to the Chairs of the Constitutional and Legislative Affairs, 
External Affairs and Additional Legislation, and Climate Change, Environment and 
Rural Affairs Committees, and to Business Committee Members. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

Elin Jones AM 
Llywydd 
 
 
cc: Mick Antoniw AM, Committee Chair, Constitutional and Legislative Affairs 

Committee 
  David Rees AM, Committee Chair, External Affairs and Additional Legislation 
Committee 
Mike Hedges AM, Committee Chair, Climate Change, Environment and Rural 
Affairs Committee 
Business Committee Members  

Pack Page 47



 

 

Mark Drakeford AM 
Cabinet Secretary for Finance 

19 June 2018 

Dear Mark 

The Intergovernmental Agreement on the Withdrawal Bill states that the UK 
Government commits to not bringing forward legislation that would alter areas 
of policy for England in so far as the devolved legislatures are prevented from 
doing so as a result of restrictions imposed on their competence by UK Ministers 
under powers in the European Union (Withdrawal) Bill (“the Bill”).  

A new clause proposed by Sir Oliver Letwin MP during the House of Commons’ 
consideration of Lords amendments which relates to the maintenance of 
environmental principles and was supported by the UK Government, requires the 
Secretary of State to publish a draft Bill within six months of the Bill being 
passed. Should restrictions in relation to the environment be imposed on the 
National Assembly’s devolved competence between the Bill coming into force 
and a draft environment Bill being published, the UK Government could 
potentially be in breach of the assurances made in the Intergovernmental 
Agreement by bringing forward legislation in a policy area subject to restrictions.  

During consideration of Commons reasons and amendments yesterday 
afternoon, the House of Lords agreed with the Commons in their amendment 3A, 
as originally proposed by Sir Oliver Letwin. 

I would be grateful if you could:  

 let the Committee know whether the Welsh Government has been involved in 
discussions with the UK Government on the implications of the amendment; 
and  

 clarify whether in your view the amendment has the potential to breach the 
Intergovernmental Agreement. 

 

Pack Page 48

Agenda Item 4.3

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/702623/2018-04-24_UKG-DA_IGA_and_Memorandum.pdf


 

I am copying this letter to the Chair of the External Affairs and Additional 
Legislation Committee. 

Yours sincerely, 

 

Mick Antoniw 
Chair 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Pack Page 49



Pack Page 50

Agenda Item 4.4



 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg / We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English 

 

 

 

 

Mr Karl Heinz Lambertz 

President 

European Committee of the Regions 

Rue Bellard 

1040 Brussels 

Belgium 

 

 

Your ref: 

Our ref: PO486/EJ/NM 

 

 

19 June 2018 

 

 

Dear Mr Lambertz 

Thank you for your letter drawing my attention to the useful Resolution adopted 

by the Committee of the Regions on 16 and 17 May on the Implications of the 

United Kingdom’s withdrawal from the European Union for the EU’s local and 

regional authorities. 

The conclusions reached in the resolution will, I am sure, be of great interest to 

Assembly Members and have been drawn to their attention.  I particularly 

welcome the commitment the Committee made in the Resolution to begin internal 

preparations to ensure the maintenance of relationships between devolved 

legislatures and local governments in the UK and the Committee of the Regions 

following the UK’s withdrawal. 

I know that discussions on mechanisms to maintain these relationships have been 

on-going since March and warmly welcome the commitments made to date.  You 

will know that the Assembly’s External Affairs and Additional Legislation 

Committee is currently carrying out work to consider Wales’ future relationship 

with the EU and its regions and I note that you will be meeting the Chair of this 

Committee to discuss the work further on 26 June 2018. 

I remain concerned about the continued delays in the nomination and ratification 

of the Assembly’s Committee of the Regions nominee, Mick Antoniw AM, by the 

UK Government.  I note however, the personal commitment made by the UK 

Pack Page 51

Agenda Item 4.5



 

Government’s Parliamentary Under-Secretary of State for Exiting the EU, Robin 

Walker MP, to the Assembly’s External Affairs and Additional Committee to resolve 

the issue as a matter of priority.  I hope that the Assembly will, in the near future, 

have a full member of the Committee to continue these important discussions on 

the future relationship between the Committee of the Regions and the National 

Assembly. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Elin Jones AM 

Llywydd 

 

cc   David Rees AM, Chair, External Affairs and Additional Legislation Committee 

      Bethan Sayed AM, Committee of the Regions representative 

      Mick Antoniw AM, Committee of the Regions nominee 

Pack Page 52



 

Mark Drakeford AM/AC 
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Gyllid  
Cabinet Secretary for Finance  

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 

Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Mark.Drakeford@llyw.cymru                 
Correspondence.Mark.Drakeford@gov.wales 

 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 

gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  

 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 

in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.  

 
Assembly Members 
 

 
  

 

19 June 2018 
 
 
 

Dear colleagues 
 

As we reach the concluding stages of the EU Withdrawal Bill in the Houses of Parliament 
and ahead of the government debate on the second anniversary of the Brexit referendum in 
the National Assembly this week, I wanted to write to all Members to confirm the details of 
the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) the Welsh Government reached with the UK 
Government.  
 
I also wanted to take this opportunity to address some continuing misunderstandings and 
correct some misleading statements made about the IGA. 
 
The agreement confirms the inversion of Clause 11. The Bill as originally drafted would 
have retained all ‘returning’ EU powers over devolved policy areas at Westminster, with 
Ministers of the Crown able to release them to the devolved institutions to an extent and to a 
timescale which they alone determined.  
 
Now, all powers over devolved policy areas are confirmed as remaining with the National 
Assembly. Moreover where the Assembly agrees that frameworks are required, a process 
has been established for these to be identified. When the EU law restriction ends, the 
devolved institutions will be able to exercise them without the current requirement to operate 
within EU frameworks. In these areas, our ability to exercise our devolved competence will 
increase.  
 
No powers whatsoever have been withheld from the Assembly and none will be until the 
Assembly has had the opportunity to consider any draft regulations brought forward under 
the legislation.  
 
The agreement sets out a collaborative process between the governments to identify where 
frameworks are needed and to develop these draft regulations which specify which EU 
powers will be ‘frozen’. Moreover, it applies the Sewel convention to these secondary 
legislative powers – the National Assembly and the Scottish Parliament will be asked for 
their consent. The UK Government makes the same commitment not normally to proceed 

Pack Page 53

Agenda Item 4.6

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Mark.Drakeford@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Mark.Drakeford@gov.wales


without this consent as currently applies to primary legislation, which touches on devolved 
policies.  
 
The agreement contains further safeguards compared to Sewel – if the UK Government 
wishes to press on with making these regulations in the absence of consent, it has to 
present not just its own views but those of devolved Ministers about why their legislature 
has refused consent. And for the UK Government’s view to prevail,  both Houses of 
Parliament will need to agree. 
 
The agreement puts onto the face of the Bill sunset clauses for the power to create 
regulations – two years from exit day – and any regulations made (a maximum of five 
years). After this date, all powers in devolved areas currently held by the EU will be 
exercised in Holyrood and Cardiff Bay. Any pooling of competence in areas where 
frameworks are to be agreed  will therefore be temporary. 
 
It gives an unequivocal guarantee that UK Ministers will not bring before Parliament any 
legislation relating to England to make changes to retained EU law in areas subject to 
regulations. This effectively establishes a level playing field across the UK – the effect of 
regulations will be to retain the current EU frameworks in operation across the whole UK 
until new frameworks are negotiated and agreed. This commitment will also provide a 
strong incentive to the UK Government to agree frameworks long before the five-year 
maximum term provided by the regulations. 
 
Finally, there is an unequivocal statement in the agreement that the Sewel convention will 
apply to any UK Parliament primary legislation, which is used to put in place agreed UK-
wide frameworks. This ensures there is no risk that the regulations will be used as the basis 
of arguing that as matters are temporarily beyond competence, Sewel does not apply. 
 
I next want to set out clearly some of the things the agreement does not do: 
 

 No powers have been given away– all powers currently exercised by the EU will 
come to Wales until such time as regulations are brought forward to put specific EU 
powers ‘in the freezer’ while frameworks are being developed. These regulations 
have not been drafted yet and they will come to the National Assembly to consider 
before they are laid in Parliament. The annex to the agreement lists areas within 
which regulations can be brought forward – in most cases, frameworks are likely to 
be needed in relatively narrow areas of current EU legislation within these areas; 
 

 It does not allow the UK Government to do whatever it likes or to rewrite Welsh laws 
while things are ‘in the freezer’. The only changes to retained EU law which can be 
made in these areas are narrow, technical ones needed to make the law operable 
after Brexit. The agreement means the UK cannot make changes to the current EU 
frameworks – even in respect of England – while things are in ‘the freezer’. 
Frameworks will need to be negotiated and agreed between governments, and if they 
are not, at the end of the sunset period, the powers will come back to the National 
Assembly and it will be able to legislate as it sees fit; 
 

 The sunset clauses do not mean the National Assembly will not be able  
to legislate in any of these devolved areas for seven or eight years. No such 
restrictions will exist until such time as they are agreed by the National Assembly. 
Where temporary restrictions are placed on competence, the agreement means no 
government – including the UK Government acting for England – can make any 
changes to the status quo. Nor can the sunset clause be extended by the Bill –it 
gives no such powers to Ministers, and to do so would need a new piece of primary 
legislation, to which Sewel would apply; 

Pack Page 54



 

 Any restrictions placed on competence will only prevent us from legislating 
incompatibly with EU-retained law, exactly as we are prevented from legislating 
incompatibly with EU law now. Suggestions that these restrictions would have 
prevented us from passing such Acts as the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act are 
simply wrong. Such Acts were enacted within the constraints which have prevented 
us from legislating incompatibly with EU law since the National Assembly came into 
being; 
 

 The agreement is not just a piece of paper which has no binding effect on the UK 
Government. It was painstakingly negotiated at a level of specific detail. It is a clear 
and unequivocal commitment from the UK Government and we have no reason to 
believe the UK Government will not adhere in full to the terms of the agreement. Our 
inter-governmental machinery is based on a Memorandum of Understanding, which 
has the same status, as does the fiscal framework. 
 

 The agreement does not define consent as meaning the National Assembly has 
given a view, whether it is to give consent or refuse it. The reference to the ‘consent 
decision’ in the amendments is simply to allow action to be taken more quickly than 
the 40-day period envisaged, where all devolved legislatures have already expressed 
a view. The UK Government’s commitment is not normally to lay regulations before 
Parliament without the consent of the National Assembly, not without a consent 
decision.  

 
Finally, it has been suggested that it is a constitutional outrage that Parliament can just 
override the will of the National Assembly on devolved matters. However, this is the basis of 
the current constitutional settlement. The agreement gives additional safeguards to the way 
in which the Sewel convention operates.  
 
I look forward to Tuesday’s debate. 
 
 

 
 
 
Mark Drakeford AM/AC 
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Gyllid  
Cabinet Secretary for Finance 
 

Pack Page 55



Pack Page 56

Agenda Item 4.7



Pack Page 57



Pack Page 58



Pack Page 59



Pack Page 60

Agenda Item 4.8



Pack Page 61



Pack Page 62



Ken Skates AC/AM 
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros yr Economi a Thrafnidiaeth 
Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Transport 
 

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 

Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Ken.Skates@llyw.cymru 

Correspondence.Ken.Skates@gov.wales 
 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 

gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  

 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 

in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

 
 
Angus MacNeil MP 
Chair 
House of Commons Select Committee on International Trade 

 
21 June 2018  

 
 
 
Dear Angus 
 
I welcome the opportunity to give written evidence to your committee’s inquiry into the 
appropriate level of transparency and scrutiny of UK trade strategy and negotiations post 
Brexit.    
 
May I begin by stating that the Welsh Government believes it is imperative that the UK 
Government engages comprehensively and effectively with the devolved institutions on the 
development of trade policy, on mandates for specific trade negotiations and on the 
negotiations themselves to ensure the future UK trade relationships work in the interests of 
the whole of the UK. It is essential that there is fairness and transparency in how future 
trade agreements are reached 
 
Wales is an outward-looking, globally trading nation and we have a significant interest in 
trade. Whilst we accept that international trade is a reserved matter, there are clearly 
devolved interests, such as agriculture, which intersect with UK trade policy and there are 
clear risks to Wales if the UK Government’s future trade policy does not adequately 
represent the needs of Welsh industry.  It is vital that Welsh Government is involved early in 
the process of negotiating any future free trade agreements so we can effectively share 
information and influence outcomes.   
 
I must emphasise that underpinning all our answers to the specific questions you pose is 
the call for the establishment of a Council for Ministers, whose remit would include 
consultation on trade issues between the four administrations. In the meantime, and as an 
interim step pending the substantial reform of inter-governmental machinery we believe a 
Joint Ministerial Committee (JMC) on International Trade should be established to enable 
timely and comprehensive consultation on overall trade policy and individual trade 
negotiations.   
 
In addressing the questions you raise, I would wish to stress that I am responding on behalf 
of the Welsh Government and do not presume to speak for the National Assembly as a 
legislature. I would anticipate that they would wish to respond separately   

Pack Page 63

Agenda Item 4.9

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Ken.Skates@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Ken.Skates@gov.wales


 
Turning now to your specific questions, our responses are:  
 

1. Which documents pertaining to trade policy and negotiations should the 

Government make publicly available – and which should remain confidential? 

Public interest in trade policy has increased in recent years. In developing trade policy for 
the UK going forward, the UK Government needs to ensure that it works with Devolved 
Administrations, consults with citizens and businesses and talks to civil society – ensuring 
that all stakeholders are included from the start.   
 
We are supportive of the EU approach to transparency and would support a similar system 
being adopted in the UK. We propose the following: 
 

 Publication of the negotiating mandate and any Impact Assessments that accompany 
the mandate. 

 Publication of negotiating round reports – to keep the public up to date with progress. 

 Publication of the negotiated agreement, without waiting for the full legal revision to 
be completed.  

 
 

2. What level of access should Parliament and the devolved administrations and 

legislatures have to trade policy documents, including trade negotiation texts? 

We have addressed above the issue of which documents should be publicly available. 
 
Welsh Government fully understands that a certain level of confidentiality is necessary to 
protect the UK position in a negotiation, but our starting point is that there are well 
established protocols for sharing sensitive and confidential information between the UK 
Government and the Devolved Administrations on a privileged basis. We therefore believe 
that the UK Government should share with the Devolved Administrations trade policy 
documents and detailed updates on negotiations and on evolving negotiating strategy and 
tactics, especially insofar as they relate to areas of devolved competence. All parties need 
to work to build trust, allowing the sharing of documents in confidence. We propose the 
following mechanisms to help with this: 
 

 The creation of a Joint Ministerial Committee on International Trade would be a big 
step to providing the governance structure needed to allow Ministers from the four 
administrations to work together to agree on priorities for trade negotiations, 
particularly in respect of areas of devolved competence.  

 Supporting this forum with a Senior Officials level group would provide the forum for 
administrations to be able to openly share documents throughout the negotiations 
process.  

 In areas of devolved competence Welsh Government should be part of the 
negotiations – whether that is ‘in the room’ or ‘in the room next door’.  
  

3. How should the Government consult business and civil society groups on 

trade policy matters, including prospective and on-going trade negotiations? 

Again we are supportive of the EU approach to consultation and would support a similar 
system being adopted in the UK. We propose the following: 
  

 Formal consultation before the mandate is signed off and published – allowing 
stakeholders to comment on the mandate and impact assessments. 

Pack Page 64



 Potentially, using the Joint Ministerial Committee on International Trade as a conduit  
for stakeholder consultation, particularly in respect of stakeholders in the devolved 
nations.   

 A UK wide  Advisory Group with representatives across businesses and civil society 
– ensuring that the UK Government  has to take in to account the interests of 
stakeholders across the whole of the UK which would allow views on the mandate 
and negotiating round reports to feed back to negotiating teams. 

 A stakeholder round table, including representation from the respective legislatures, 
in each of the four administrations, that feeds in to the Advisory Group – again 
allowing views on mandate and negotiating round reports to feed back to negotiating 
teams. 

 
 

4. What role should Parliament and devolved administrations and legislatures 

have in drafting and/or approving the UK's negotiating mandate for trade 

negotiations? 

A Joint Ministerial Committee on International Trade would provide the governance 
structure needed to allow Ministers from the four administrations to work together to agree a 
negotiating mandate for trade negotiations.  
 
Despite trade being a reserved matter, trade has significant intersection with devolved 
powers in areas like environmental standards, economic development, agriculture and skills 
and qualifications. Hence decisions on the new trading relationships with the EU and wider 
world must be taken in close co-operation between the UK Government and Devolved 
Administrations in order to reflect the interests of the whole of the UK.  
 
We would anticipate that the Welsh Government would be responsible for seeking the views 
of the National Assembly and informing the National Assembly of the representations it has 
made within the Joint Ministerial Committee on International Trade while respecting the 
confidentiality of matters under discussion.  
 

5. What procedures should be in place for the UK Parliament and devolved 

administrations/legislatures to scrutinise trade agreements as they are being 

negotiated? 

Again a Joint Ministerial Committee on International Trade and supporting Senior Officials 
Group would provide the governance structure needed to allow Ministers from the four 
administrations to scrutinise a negotiating mandate for trade negotiations in a strictly 
confidential way.  We are also calling for Welsh Government officials to be part of the 
negotiations in areas of devolved competence.  
 
We have also proposed that the UK adopts a European style remit to transparency and 
hence publishes negotiating round reports. 
 
We would anticipate that the Welsh Government would formally consult the National 
Assembly (via appropriate Committees) on documents put into the public domain by the UK 
Government, notably the draft negotiating mandate and impact assessments in order to 
inform its input into inter-governmental discussions on trade issues. 
 
 
 
 

Pack Page 65



6. What powers should Parliament and the devolved administrations and 

legislatures have over the ratification and implementing legislation of UK trade 

agreements? 

We believe that any responsible UK Government would want to avoid major constitutional 
disputes over the implementation of trade agreements which might impact on, or require 
changes to policies within devolved competence. This is best achieved by early, full and 
meaningful consultation with the Devolved Administrations (and, through them, devolved 
legislatures) when agreeing – and, if necessary, departing from - negotiating mandates. A 
policy of inclusive policy development and ‘no surprises’ will ensure that trade agreements 
can be ratified and implemented without resorting to the legal powers which the UK 
Government currently possesses to force devolved institutions to comply with agreements 
which it has negotiated. 
 
I look forward to reading the report of your inquiry in due course. 
 
I am copying this letter to the Secretary of State for Wales, Alun Cairns; Cabinet Secretary 
for Economy, Jobs and Fair Work, Keith Brown MSP; The Minister for UK Negotiations on 
Scotland’s Place in Europe, Michael Russell MSP; David Sterling as Head of the Northern 
Ireland Civil Service as well as the Chairs of the External Affairs and Additional Legislation 
and the Economy, Infrastructure and Skills Committees of the National Assembly 
 
Yours sincerely  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Ken Skates AC/AM 

Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros yr Economi a Thrafnidiaeth  
Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Transport 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Pack Page 66



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 67

Agenda Item 7By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42


	Agenda
	3 Hub Cymru Africa - evidence session
	Wales for Africa Grants Programme: End of Year Project Report - March 2018
	Paper by Fairtrade Wales - June 2018
	Brexit update

	4.1 Paper to note 1 - Correspondence from Greg Hands MP, Minister of State for Trade Policy, regarding the implications of future trade policy - 11 June 2018
	4.2 Paper to note 2 - Correspondence from the Llywydd to the First Minister regarding the EU (Withdrawal) Bill and environmental law - 14 June 2018
	4.3 Paper to note 3 - Correspondence from Mick Antoniw, Chair of the Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee, to the Cabinet Secretary for Finance regarding the intergovernmental agreement on the EU (Withdrawal) Bill - 19 June 2018
	4.4 Paper to note 4 - Correspondence from the Cabinet Secretary for Finance to Mick Antoniw, Chair of the Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee, regarding the intergovernmental agreement on the EU (Withdrawal) Bill - 19 June 2018
	4.5 Paper to note 5 - Correspondence from the Llywydd to Karl Heinz Lambertz, President European Committee of the Regions regarding the Committee of the Regions - 19 June 2018
	4.6 Paper to note 6 - Correspondence from the Cabinet Secretary for Finance regarding the inter-governmental agreement between the Welsh and UK governments - 19 June 2018
	4.7 Paper to note 7 - Correspondence from the Cabinet Secretary for Finance regarding the Brexit transition inquiry - 19 June 2018
	4.8 Paper to note 8 - Correspondence from Robin Walker MP, Parliamentary Under-Secretary for Exiting the EU, regarding the Brexit transition inquiry - 20 June 2018
	4.9 Paper to note 9 - Correspondence from the Cabinet Secretary for Economy to Angus MacNeil MP, Chair of the House of Commons Select Committee on International Trade, regarding UK trade strategy post Brexit - 21 June 2018
	7 Briefing on the European Union (Withdrawal) Bill

